

"Cow jockey" Brian Nielsen rode Taffy, a 3-year-old Holstein cow, to an exciting finish in "The Udder Race". He completed the one-mile race in 8 minutes and 55 seconds.

World's Fastest Cow Wins First "Udder Race"

Cow racing could be the next big rural sport, if reaction to a recent wild and crazy event called "The Udder Race" is any indication.

Spectators at the race in Ithaca, Michigan witnessed the performance of what organizers say is the world's fastest cow. The people at the Guinness Book of World Records are currently considering the record.

"Cow jockey" Brian D. Nielsen of Mason, Mich., rode Taffy, a three-year-old Holstein cow, to an exciting finish. Nielsen and his "steed" completed the one mile race in eight minutes, 55 seconds, outdistancing five other "racecows".

Film clips of the exciting and humorous race were seen across NorthAmerica on television, and event organizers Pete Ondrus and his wife Barb Lambert, have had feedback from as far away as Dublin, Ireland.

"We call cow racing a poor man's sport. You don't have to spend thousands of dollars like you would to buy a horse," says Ondrus. "It's fun for adults or kids, and it's environment-friendly. When you can't race your cow anymore, you can either milk them or eat them"

The 66-year-old Ondrus is a retired Carson City, Mich. dairy farmer who once milked 500 cows. As a member of his County Board of Commissioners, he suggested cow racing as a way to boost fair attendance. The rest of the board just laughed."

Ondrus sold his cows in 1996, found he had more time to pursue his dream, and decided to make it a reality. Prior to the Ithaca race, he and Lambert formed the Mid-Michigan Cow Racing Association (MMCRA) as well as the World Wide Cow Racing Association (WWCRA), to exercise official control over cow racing. They copyrighted those names, drafted a set of rules and created a website (www.cowrace.com).

There is a set of rules for a youth race (10 to 15 year-olds) as well as another for adults.

Ondrus says the race animals must be female bovines, so that means they could be dairy, beef or even buffalo.

The first race turned out to be huge success. Six cows (five Holsteins and one beef cross) and their jockeys gave it their all in two heats, much to the delight of more than 500 spectators.

Nielson received \$1,000 as the winner's share of the \$2,575 purse. In the victory circle following the race, he downed a complimentary bottle of milk while Taffy looked elegant in her classy winner's wreath of flowers.

Don Wetzel of Vermontville, MI rode "Big Bodacious Bertha" to a second place finish, earning \$525 for his efforts.

As reported in the Grand Rapids Press and Gratiot County Herald, "When the race started, one cow immediately bucked off her rider, Dennis Vanderhoff from Vermontville. Undaunted, he ran about an eighth of a mile to catch up to his mount, jumped back on, and restarted the race. He finished last."

"Another cow bolted across the infield. But Taffy plunged ahead at a fast walk, occasionally breaking into a gallop for the two laps around the half-mile track, pausing to sniff a wet spot and once veering toward the rail, apparently hoping to be petted."

All of the racecows wore saddles (either English or Western) and bridles, but some of the riders found they needed to make slight modifications to keep the saddles on their cows. Some put one rope around the back and under the tail, and another around the belly. The cow's skin is so loose, the saddles move a lot, so riders need to have good balance.

Contact FARM SHOW Followup, Pete Ondrus, 9517 S. Warner Rd., Carson City, Mich. 48811 (ph 517 584-6286); E-mail: ondruslambert@cmsinter.net; website: www.cowrace.com)





To pick up litter along highways, Vernon Feiler of Ocala, Fla., straps a pair of 25-gal. plastic tubs to his Husqvarna riding mower.

"Litter Gitter" Riding Mower Makes Trash Pickup Easy, Fun

"Picking up litter along highways is easy and even fun since I got this idea," says Vernon Feiler, Ocala, Fla., who straps a pair of 25gal. plastic tubs to his Husqvarna riding lawn mower

The tubs are held in place by rubber straps cut from old inner tubes, with a hook at each end. A short board bolted to the tractor drawbar provides a platform for the back tub. The other tub rests on the mower deck. Feiler drops cans or bottles into the back tub and anything that's not recyclable in the other one. When he gets home he sorts the glass from the plastic bottles and aluminum cans.

Feiler got his "litter gitter" idea soon after he "adapted" two miles of highway in his state's Adapt-A-Highway program. "I' ve picked up hundreds of bags of trash. I put a sign on front and back of the tractor so drivers know I' m a volunteer and not getting paid by the county.

"The gripper can pick up a postage stamp as easily as a beer can. They sell for about \$25 and can be purchased at hospital supply stores or anywhere else that wheelchairs are sold. It gets to be sort of like a game of poor man's polo as you practice snatching up litter without stopping.

"I go along both sides of the road once a week, which amounts to a four-mile tractor ride every seven days. Each week I fill the trash tub and nearly fill the other tub with cans and bottles. I find that it's best to collect the litter each week or else it gets to be too much work to be fun."

Contact: FARM SHOW Followup, Vernon Feiler, 9350 SW 19th Ave. Rd., Ocala, Fla. 34476 (ph 352 237-1507).



Tubs are held in place by rubber straps with a hook at each end.



A short board bolted to tractor drawbar provides a platform for the back tub.



He uses this gripper to snatch up litter without even stopping.

The Idea Marketplace For Agriculture WWWBestFarmBuyscom

Visit BestFarmBuys.com to find innovative products for your farm operation, great gift ideas, FREE classified ads, and much more.